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For The Poor With Heartfelt Dedication

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANC IAL STATEMENTS

The management of ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is responsible for the preparation

aod fair presentation of the financial statements, including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended

I)ecember 31,2016 ar.d 2015 in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein,

and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whetl-rer due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Foundation's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters telated to going concerfl and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease

operations, or has no realistic aiternative to do so.

'fhe Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Foundation's financial repofting process.

The Board of Trustees teviews and approves the financial stateraents, including the scheduies attached thetein,

and submits tl-re same to the members.

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the members, have audited the financiai

statemerits of the Foundation in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their report to the

Board of Trustees and members, have expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentatiofl upon completion

of such audit.

RUL FDER
Preside

Signed this 20,h day of March 2017.

15th Floor Prestige Tower F. Ortigas Jr.
Phone: +(632) 6877558 Telefax:

FLORINDA M. I.ACANLAI.AY
Treasurer

Road Ortigas Center Pasig City 1605, Phitippines
+(632) 631 1 1 07 Website: www.asaphil.org

ARD S. GO
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Boatd of Trustees
ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc.
(A Nons tocl<, Nonptofit Organization)
15e Floot Ptestige Tower, F. OtigasJr. Sfteet
Ortigas Centet, Pasrg City

Report on the Audit of the Financial

Opinion

\We have audited the financial statements of ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc.
(the Foundation), which comptise the statements of financial position as at
December 37,2076 and 2075, and the statements of comptehensive income, statements of
changes in fund balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to
the financial statemeflts, including a srrnma{y of significant accounting policies.

In out opinion, the accompanlng financial statements present fakly,in all material
respects, the financial position of the Foundation as at Decembet 31.,2076 and2075, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the yeats then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Repoting Standatds (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing eSA).
Onr tesponsibilities under those standards are furthet described tn the Auditors'
Reqonsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statenents secdon of our report. We are

independent of the Foundation in accotdance with the Code of Ethics for Ptofessional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) togethet with the ethical tequirements

that ate televant to our audits of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have

fulfilled our othet ethical responsibilities in accotdance with these tequirements and the
Code of Ethics. \07e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to ptovide a basis for our opinion.

Ceftified Public Accountants
Punongbayan & Araullo (PM) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Punongbayan & Araullo
20th Floor, Tower 1

The Enterprise Center

6766 Ayala Avenue

1200 Makati City

Philippines

I +6329882288
F +63 2 886 5506
grantthornton.com. ph

t
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair ptesentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such intemal conftol as management
deternines is necessary to enable the ptepatation of financial statemerts that ate ftee ftom
mztenalmisstatement, whethet due to ftaud ot erot.

In preparing the financial statements, management is tesponsible for assessing the
Foundation's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concem and using the going concefir basis of accounting unless
management eithet intends to liquidate the Foundation ot to cease opetadons, ot has no
realistic altemative but to do so.

Those chatged with governance are responsible for ovetseeing the Foundation's financial
teporting process.

Auditors'Responsibilities fot the Audit of the Financial Statements

Out objectives are to obtain rcasonable assruance about whethet the financial statements

as a whole are ftee ftom material misstatemeng whether due to ftaud or error, and to issue

an auditots' teport that includes out opinion. Reasonable assutance is a high level of
assuraflce, but is not a gaatarltee that an audit conducted in accotdance with PSA will
always detect a matedal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise ftom ftaud
ot ertor and ate considered material if, individually ot in the aggtegate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these fi nancial statements.

As part of an audit in accotdance with PSA, we exetcise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Jdenti$ afld assess the dsks of material
whethet due to ftaud ot eroq design
those risks, and obtain audit evidence
basis fot out opinion. The dsk of not
ftaud is higher than fot one tesulting
forgery, intentional omissions, mis ot the overide of i

o Obtain an undetstanding of internal
audit ptocedutes that are apptopriate in
exptessing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal conEol.

o Evaluate the appropdateness of accounting policies used and the teasonableness of
accounting esdmates and telated disclosues made by management.



ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATI
(A I\Io n s to cJr, Nonp ro fi t

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL
DECEMBER3I,2016
(,4m o un ts in Philippin e

ASSETS

CASH

LOANS RECEfVABLE - Net

OTHER RECETVABLES

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Net

RENTAL DEPOSITS

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BAIANCE

CAPITAL BUILD.UP AND
LOCKED IN CAPITAL BUILD-UP

LOANS PAYABLE

POST.EMPLOYMENT DEFINED
BENEFIT OBLIGATION

OTHER LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BAI-ANCE

P 294,195,551

8,398,365,852

108,6711315

727,582,800

21,434r796

P 8,950,250,314

P 4,528,169,220

770,000,000

377,214,100

1,021,227,207

6,69616091527

2,2531640,787

P 8,950,250,314

Notes

6

7

7

8

18

9

10

14

11

2017

16 rllrll of

P 262,779,595

5,217,722,789

92,1.27,r92

108,471,900

'/..5,409,230

P 5,695,949,706

P 3,1,75,605,750

579,000,000

207,273,700

893,859,023

4,795,737,973

900,1 1 1,833

P 5,695,949,706TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE



ASA PHILIPPINES FOLTNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonpmfr t Oryanization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSTVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

(Arnounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 24fi

RE\rENUES
Serr.ice fees

Othet tevenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Pfoiect costs

General and adminisuative expenses

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

oTHER COMPR"EHENSTVE TNCOME (LOSS)

ftem that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasutement of post-employrnent

defined benefit plan

TOTAL COMPREHENSTVE INCOME

,1

6,7 ,12

P 3,904,067,064

11,475,115

31915r542r179

21071,110,773

518,273,052

2,589383,825

1326,159,354

27,370,600

P 1,353,528,954

2015

P 2,284,550,477

6,272,597

2,290,823,004

t,528,240,749

439,337,987

1,,967,572,736

323,250,268

( 38,761,100)

284.489.168

t3

14

See I{otes to Financial Statements.



ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC.
(A l{on s to clq t{onprofi t Otganiza ti on)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FI.IND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Note 2016

P 41,3601000 P 41,360,000GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

CUMULATIYE RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Balance at beginning of year
Excess ofrevenues orrer expenses

during the year

Balance at end ofyear

REMEASUREMENT OF
POST-EMPLOYMENT DEFINED

BENEFIT PI-AN
Balance at beginning otyear
Other comprehensive income (oss)

during the year

Balance at end ofyeat

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

14

886,317,933

113261158,354

2121214761287

( 27,566,100 )

27,370,600

( 195,s00 )

P 2,253,640,787

2075

563,067,665

323,250,268

886,317,933

11,195,000

38,767,700)

27,566,700)

P 900,111,833

See l{otes to Financial Statements.



ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonptofit Oryanization)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2016AND 2015

(Anounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notes 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTTVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenses

Adiustments fot:
Impairment loss

Finance costs

Depreciarion and amortization
Interest income from bank deposits

Excess of revenues over expenses before working capital changes

Increase in loans receivable
Increase in other receivables

Increase in rental deposits

Increase in capital build-up and locked in capital build-up
Increase in post-employment defined benefit obligation

7

70, 13,14

8

6,72

P 1\326,158,354

67,830,135

40,019,375

39,054,546

( 2,970,563)

1\470,09r\787
( 3,247,879,085)
( 16,544,123\
( 6,026,566)

1"412,562,470

187,155,218

127,368,184

( 73,272,115)

2,970,563

( 594,ui)

( 70,895,665 )

( 58,165,446)

870,000,000
( 679,000,000 )
( 29,862,933)

16r51j7,067

32,075,956

262,t19,595

P 294,195,551

2075

P 323,250,269

150,133,980

21,534,955

26,572,707

( 2,897,588)

5r8,594,222
( 2,067 ,77 6,557 )
( 7,876,289 )
( 3,428,181)

957,551,530

42,881,050

175,306,847

( 384,687,372)

2,gg7,5gg

( 579,518 )

( 382,369,302)

( 37,807,207 )

518,100,000

( 303,700,000)
( t6,136,405)

198,263,595

( 227,972,974)

484,032,509

262,119,595

Inctease in other liabilities

Cash used in opetations

Interest received 6,72

Cash paid for final taxes

Net Cash Used in Opemting Activities

CASH FLOWS USED INAN I}IVESTINGACTIVITY
Acquisitions of ptopety and equipment 8

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCINGACTTYITIES 10

Ptoceeds from loan availments
Payments of loans

Interest paid

Net Cash From Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OFYEAR

CASHAT END OFYEAR

See l{otes to Financial Statements.
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ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nons tock, Nonprcfi t Organization)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

(Anounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 Foundation Infotmation

ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation ot ASA) was incolpotated as a

nonstock, nonptofit organrzanon and registeted with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission onJuly 9,2004. As a non-stock, non-profit organization, tle
Foundation aims to: (a) provide efficient and affotdable financial services to the poot
fot theit income-generating activities; (b) build an effective and efficient microfinance
institution for sustainable delivery of microfinance services to the enftepreneudal poot;
and, (c) facilitate the convergence and provision of othet social sewices for the poot.

The ASA Ptogtam ptovides:

(r) Micofinance services to qualified poor, low-income women engaged in micro and
small scale enteqpdses;

(b) Financial and other forms of assistance to its members in case of sickness, death
and calamities and college scholatship fot deserving childten of membets, as part
of social services to the poor; and,

O Business development services for the members to imptove efficiency and
effectiveness in enteqprise management.

As of Decemb et 31,201,6 and 2015, the Foundation has 850 and 700 btanches,
tespectively, covering 82 ptovinces in the Philippines. Moteovet, as of
December 31.,201.6, the Foundation had a total of 1,108 service points which compdse
of the branches, 77 extension units and 181 satellite units. The Foundation has

established foothold in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao, as it operates 427 ,208, and 275

btanches thetein, respectively.

The Foundation's tegistered head office, which is also its pdncipal place of business, is

located at 156 Floor Prestige Tower, F. OrtigasJr. Sttee! Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

1.2 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Foundation -fg*.S-"-.y"* ended
ial s'tatements as at and for the yeatDecembet 31.,2076 (including the

ended December 37,2015) were a fq{,{ert Dy the. Foundation's' Board of
------.-^.-,.'-
ii

Dare i l-,lAR2gmr]\
L-- /l

.i(l i:r r, ,-, ,:, i , , i

Trustees (BOT) on Match 20,2077.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are sunrmarized below. The policies have been consistently
applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis ofPrepatation of Financial Statements

(a) S tate n ent of C onp lian ce with P hilippine Finan cial Reporting S tandards

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accotdance
with Phnippine Financial Reporting Standards @FRS). PFRS ate adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) ftom the proflouncements issued
by the Intetnational Accounting Standatds Boatd, and approved by the
Philippine Board of Accountancy.

The financial statements have been prepated using the measruement bases
specified by PFRS fot each type of asset,liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases ate more fully described in the accounting policies that
follow.

(b) Prvsentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Prcsentation of Financial Statements. The Foundation presents all
items of income and expenses in a single statement of comptehensive income.

The Foundation presents a thfud statement of financial position as at tle
beginning of the preceding pedod when it applies an accounting policy
retrospectively, ot makes a retaospective restatement or teclassification of items
that has a mrtenal effect on the infotnmtion in the financial position at the
beginning of the preceding petiod. The related riotes to the third statement of
financial position are not required to be disclosed.

(c) Functional and Prcyntation Cunvncy

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Foundation's
functional and ptesentation curtencl, and all values represent absolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the frnatcial statements of the Foundation are measrued using
its functional curtency. Functional cuffency is the primary economic
environment in which the Foundation operates.
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2.2 Adoption of New and Anended PFRS

k) Efectiue in 2016 that an Rekaant to the Foundation

The Foundation adopted fot the fitst time the following amendment and annual
improvements to PFRS, which ate mandatotily effective for annual periods
beginning on or afterJarrv ty 7,2076:

PAS 1 (Amendments)

PAS 16 and 38

(Amendments)

PAS 16 and41,
(Amendments)

Annual Improvements

Ptesentation of Financial Statements -
Disclosure Initiative

Property, Plant and Equipment, and
Intangible Assets - Clatifrca;tion of
Acceptable Methods of Depteciation
and Amortization

Ptoperty, Plant and Equipmeng and
Agticultute - Bearer Plants

Annual Improvements to
PFRS Q012-201,4 Cycle)

Discussed below ate the televant information about these amendments and
improvements.

(i) PAS 1 (Amendments), Pnsentation of Financial Statements - Disclosun Initiatiae.
The amendments encourage entities to apply professional judgment in
ptesenting and disclosing infotmation in the financial statements.
Accotdingly, it clatifies that materiality applies to the whole financial
statements and an entity shall not reduce the understandability of the
financial statemerits by obscudng mzteialinformation with immaterial
infotmation or by aggregating material items that have diffetent natures ot
functions. It firther cladfies that in determining the ordet of ptesenting
the notes and disclosures, all entity shall consider the underctandability and
compatability of the financial statements.

(ii) PAS 16 (Amendments),Prupe@, Plant andEqu$ment, and PAS 38

(Amendments), Intangible Assets - Ckification of Acceptabh Method: of
Deprcciation and,4nortiqation. The amendments in PAS 76 danfy thatz-
depteciation method that is based ofl tevenue that is generated by an

activity that includes the use of an asset is not appropriate fot ptopetty,
plant and equipment. The amendments also provide guidance that the
expected futute reductions in the selling pdce of an item that was ptoduced
s5itrg the asset could indicate an expectation of technological ot
commetcial obsolescence of an asset, which may teflect a reduction of the
futue economic benefits embodied in the asset.
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PAS 16 (Amendments), Pmpefl1, Plant and Equipnent, and PAS 41
(Amendme nts), Agicu ltm - Beanr P lants. The amendments define a bearer
plant as a living plant that is used in the production ot supply of agdcultual
ptoduce, is expected to bear produce for more than one pedod and has a
remote likelihood of being sold as agticultual produce, except foI
incidental scrap sales. On this basis, bearer plant is now included withifl
the scope of PAS 16 rather than PAS 41, allowing such assets to be
accounted fot as ptoperty, plant and equipment and to be measured after
initial recognition at cost or revaluation basis in accordance urith PAS 16.
The amendments futther danfy that produce gtowing ofl bearer plaflts
remains urifhin the scope of PAS 41.

Annual Imptovemerits to PFRS Q012-2014 Cycle). Among the
imptovements, the following amendments are relevant to the Foundation
but had no material impact on the Foundation's financial statemerits as

tlese amendments merely .l^nfy the existing requirements:

. PAS 19 (Amendments), Enploye Benefts - Discount Rate: Rryional Market
Issue. The amendments clari$r that the currency and term of the high
quality corporate bonds which wete used to determine the discount
tate for post-employment benefit obligations shall be made consistent
with the currency and estimated tetrn of the post-employment benefit
obligations.

o PFRS 7 (Amendments), Financial Instruments: Disclosurs - Senncing

Contracts. The amendments ptovide additional guidance to help entities
identi$, the circumstances under which a conttact to "seryice'; financial
assets is considered to be a continuing involvement in those assets for
the puqposes of applying the disclosure requirements of PFRS 7. Such
circumstances commonly arise when, for example, the servicing is
dependent on the amount or timing of cash flows collected ftom the
transferred asset ot when a fixed fee is not paid in firll due to
non-petformance of that asset.

(b) Efectiae in 2016 but arv not Re/taant to tbe Foundation

The following new PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards ate mandatodly effective for annual pedods beginning on ot aftet
Jznwary 1,2076 but are not relevant to the Foundation's fir'tancial statemeflts:

PAS 27 (Amendments) : Sepatate Financial Statements - Equity
Method in Separate Financial
Statements

PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and
PAS 28 (Amendments) : Consolidated Financial Statements,

Disclosute of Intetests in Othet
Entities, and fnvestrrents in Associates
andJoint Ventutes - Investnent
Entities - Applyr"g the Consolidation
Exception

: Joint Arangements - Accounting fot
Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

(*)

(r")

PFRS 11 (Amendments)
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Annual Improvements to
PFRS Q012-2014 Cycle)

PFRS 5 (Amendments) : Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations -
Changes in Methods of Disposal

PFRS 7 (A.mendments) : Financial lnstruments: Disclosures -
Applicability of the Amendments to
PFRS 7 to Condensed Intedm Financial
Statements

PAS 34 (Amendments) : Interim Financial Repoting - Disclosure
of Infotmation "Elsewhete in the
Interim Financial Report"

@ Efectiue Subxquent to 2016 but not Adopted Earlt

Thete are flew PFRS, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards effective fot annual pedods subsequent to 201.6 which are adopted by
the FRSC. Management will adopt the following televant proflouncements in
accotdance with their transitional ptovisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none
of these are expected to have significant impact on the Foundation's financial
statements:

(, PAS 7 (Amendments), Statement of Cath Fhw - Disclosurv Initiatiue (effective
ftomJanuary 1,2077). The amendments are designed to improve the
quality of information provided to users of financial statements about
changes in an entity's debt and related cash flows (and non-cash changes).
It tequites an entity to provide disclosutes that enable users to evaluate
changes in liabilities adsing ftom financing activities. An entity applies its
judgment when determining the exact form and cofltent of the disclosutes
needed to satisfr this tequfuement. Moreovef, it suggests a numbet of
specific disclosures that may be necessary in otdet to satis$r the above
tequkemeng including: (a) changes in liabilities atising ftom financing
activities caused by changes in financing cash flows, foteign exchange tates
ot fertt values, or obtaining or losing conftol of subsidiades or other
businessesl and, @) a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of
liabilities adsing from financing activities in the statement of financial
position including those changes identified immediately above.

(ii) PFRS 9 Q014),Financiallnstrunents (effecive ftomJanuarJ 7,2078). This
new standatd on financial instruments will teplace PAS 39 artd PFRS 9

Q009,2010 and 2013 versions). This standard contains, amoflg othets, the
following:

r tJree pdn"rprl classification categories fot financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments;

. an expected loss model in determining impairment of all financial
assets that arc not measured at fojr value thtough profit or loss

(FVTPL), which genetally depends on whethet there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a financial
asset; and,
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o a new model on hedge accounting that provides significant
imptowements ptincipally by aligning hedge accounting more closely
with the risk management activities undertaken by entities when
hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposutes.

In accordance with the financid asset classification pdnciple of PFRS 9

Q014), a finatacu.,l asset is classified and measured at amor(aed cost if the
asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in ordet to collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPD on the pdncrpal outstanding.
Moreover, z financtal asset is classified and subsequently measured zt fak
value thtough othet comptehensive income if it meets the SPPI cdtedon and
is held in a business model whose obiective is achieved by both collecting
conftactual cash flows and selling the financial assets. All othet financial
assets are measufed at F\([PL.

In addition, PFRS 9 Q01,4) allows entities to make an irevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fat valae of an equity instrument that is
not held for ftading in other comprehensive income.

The accounting fot embedded dedvatives in host contracts that arc finan.ial
assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider whether or flot
they are closely related, and, in most affangements, does not tequite
separation ftom the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard retains most of the PAS 39 requirements which
include amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities, with
bifurcation of embedded dedvatives. The amendment also requfues changes
in the fait value of an entity's own debt instruments caused by changes in its
own cedit quality to be recognized in other comprehensive income rather
than in profit or loss.

Management is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 9 Q014) on tfie
financial statements of the Foundation and it will conduct a comprehensive
study of the potential impact of this standard pdor to its mandatory
adoption date to assess the impact of all changes.

PFRS 75, Reaenuefmm Contract aitb Custoners. This standard will replace
PAS 18, Reuenue, and PAS '1,1,, Construction Contracts, the telated Inteqptetations
on reveflue tecognition: Internatiorrrl pfurrl"ial Reporting Intelptetations
Committee (IFRIC) 1,3, Custoruer Iqol Pmgmrzme4IFRIC 75, Agvementfor
tlte Construction of Rtal EsUb,IFRIC 78, Transfers ofAssetsfrvm Customers arrd
Standing Inteqpretations Committee 31, Reuenue * BarterTransactions Inaoldng
AduefiisingSertices, effectiveJanuary 7,2078. This new standard establishes a

comptehensive ftamework for determining when to recognize revenue and
how much tevenue to recognize. The core pdnciple in the said ftamework is
for an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfet of promised goods or
services to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

Management is currently assessing the impact of this new standard in its
financial statements.
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09 PFRS 1.6,Leases (effective ftomJanuary 1.,2019). The new standatd will
eventually teplace PAS 1 7, I-.cases.

Fot lessees, it tequfues to account for leases "on-balance sheet" by
tecognizing a "ig;ht of use" asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured as the preserit value of futute lease payments. Fot this
pu4)ose,lease payments include fixed, non-cancellable paymeflts fot lease

elements, amounts due undet tesidual value guatantees, certain types of
contingent paymeflts and amounts due duting optional periods to the extent
that extension is teasonably certain. In subsequent periods, the
"dght-of-use" asset is accounted fot simiJady to a putchased asset and
depteciated or amofiized. The lease liability is accounted for similat to a
financial liability using the effective intetest method. However, the new
standard ptovides important teliefs ot exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. If these exemptions ate used, the accounting is
similff to operating lease accounting undet PAS 17 where lease payrnents are
tecognized as expenses on a sttaight-line basis ovet the lease term ot anothet
systematic basis (if more representative of the pattem of the lessee's benefit).

Fot lessors, lease accounti"g i. similat to PAS 17's. In particulat, the
distinction between finance and opetating leases is tetained. The definitions
of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance lease, ate
substantially the same as PAS 17's. The basic accounting mechanics arc also
similat, but with some diffetent or mote explicit guidance in few ateas.

These include variable payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the
treatment of initial direct costs and lessot disclosutes.

Management is curently assessing the impact of this new standard in its
financial statements.

2.3 Financial Assets

Financial assets ate tecognaed when the Foundation becomes a party to the
contractual tems of the frnancialinstruments. Fot purposes of classi@S financial
assets, an instrument is considered as an equity instrument if is non-derivative and
meets the definition of equity fot the issuet in accotdance with the criteria of PAS 32,

Financial Instraments: Pnsentation. -N17 other non*derivative finzncialinstruments ate
treated as debt instruments.

Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments ate
classified into the following categodes: financial assets at F\flPL, loans and
teceivables, held-to-matudty investrnents md avulable-fot-sale financial assets.

Financial assets are assigned to the different categoties by management on initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investrnents were acquircd.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets arc rccogntzed on theit ttade date.

All financial assets that xe not classified as at FVTPL ate initially recognized at fatt
value plus any directly attdbutable ftansaction costs. Financial assets catded at FVTPL
are initially recorded * fit value and tlre related transaction costs are recognized in
profit or loss.

The financial assets category that is curently relevant to the Foundation is loans and

teceivables.



-8-

Loans and teceivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed ot detetrninable
payments that are not quoted in an active matket. They atise when the Foundation
ptovides money, goods ot services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the
teceivables.

The Foundation's financial assets categoized as loans and teceivables ate presented as

Cash, Loans Receivable, Othet Receivables and Rental Deposits in the statement of
financalposition. Cash includes demand deposits which generally eam intetest at
daily bank deposit rates and ate subject to insignificant changes in value.

Loans and teceivables are subsequently measuted at amofiized cost using the effective
intetest method, less impairment loss, if. ary. Impairment loss is provided when there
is any objective evidence that the Foundation will not be able to collect all amounts
due to it in accotdance with the original tems of the receivables. The amount of the
impaitment loss is determined as the difference between the assets' catryngamount
and the ptesent value of estimated futme cash flows (excluding futwe uedit losses that
have not been incured), discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate or curtent effective intetest rate determined under the contract if the loan has a
variable interest rate.

The caqying amourit of the asset shall be reduced either dfuectly ot through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in ptofit ot loss.

If in a subsequent pedod the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
dectease can be related obiectively to an event occurring aftet the impairment was
recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously
tecognized impaimrent loss is tevetsed by adjusting the allowance account. The
tevetsal shall not result n a cartyng amount of the financial asset that exceeds what
the amortized cost would have been had the impairrnent flot been recognized at the
date of the impairment is reversed. The amouflt of the reversal is recognized in
ptofit ot loss.

All income and expenses, including impairment losses, relating to financial assets that
xe recogntzed in profit or loss ate presented as part of General and Adminisftative
Expenses account under the Operating Expenses secdon in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Non-compounding intetest and othet cash flows tesulting from holding financial
assets are rccogdned in profit ot loss when eamed, tegatdless of how the related
carryng amount of financial assets is measured. All expenses telating to financial
assets arc rccognized in profit or loss.

The financial assets (or where applicable, L pffi of a financial asset or pa:j. of t goup
of financial assets) ate derecognized when the conttactual dghts to teceive cash flows
ftom the frnmcialinstruments expfue, or when the financial assets and all substantial
dsks and tewards of ownership have been ftansferred to anothet pxty. If the
Foundation neithet uansfers nor tetains substantially all the risks and rewatds of
ownership and continues to control the transfetted asse! the Foundation tecognizes
its retained interest in the asset and an associated tiability fot amounts it may have to
pay. If the Foundation retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a

ftansferred financial asset, the Foundation continues to tecognize the financial asset

and also recognizes a ssTTalslalized borowing fot the ptoceeds teceived.
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2.5 OthetAssets

Othet assets pertain to othet resources conftolled by the Foundation as a result of past
events. They ate tecognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the
futue economic benefits will flow to the Foundation and the asset has a cost or value
that can be measured teliably.

2.6 Property and Equipment

Ptoperty and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depteciation and
amcstAzalon and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset compdses its puchase pdce and dfuectly attdbutable costs of
bti"g"g the asset to wotking condition for its intended use. Expenditutes fot
additions, major irnprovements and tenewals ar.e capitahzed while expenditues fot
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the sttaight-line basis over the estimated usefirl lives of
the assets as follows:

Building
Equipment and vehicles
Furnitute and fixtues

15 yeats
5 yeats
3 yeats

Office imptovemeflts are amortized over the es '"nated usefrrl life of the imptovements
of five yearc, ot the tetm of the lease, whichever is shortet.

The Foundation's ptoperty and equipment are subject to impairment testing whenever
events ot changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Impairment loss fot property and equipment is tecognized fot the amount by which
the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recovetable amounts which is the highet of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In detetmining value in use,

maoagement estimates the expected future cash flows ftom such asset and
detetmines the suitable intetest rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The data used for impairment tesring ptocedues are directly linked to the
Foundation's latest apptoved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of
asset enhancements. Discount factors determined teflect filanagement's assessment of
respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specifi.c dsk factots.

Property and equipment is subsequently teassessed for indications that an impairnent
loss pteviously tecognized may no longet exist. An impairment loss is revetsed if the
recoverable amount of the propefry and equipment exceeds its carrying amoufrt.

The residual values, estimated usefi.rl lives, and depteciation and morljzadon method
of property and equipment are reviewed and adjusted if apptopnate, at the end of each

teporting period.



-10-

An item of ptopetty and equipmen! including the telated accumulated depteciation
and amortization and any impaimrent losses, is detecognized upon disposal ot when
no future economic benefits afe expected to arise ftom the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss atising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the diffetence
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in
profit ot loss in the year the item is detecognized.

2.7 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include Capital Build-up (CBg and Locked in Capital

Build-up QCBID, Loans Payable and Othet Liabilities (excluding tax-related liabilities)

ate tecognized when the Foundation becomes a party to the conftactual terms of the
instrument. These are initially rccognized at theit fait value and subsequently

measued artamodzed cost using effective interest method fot maturities beyond one

year, less settlement payments.

All intetest-telated charges incurred on financial liabilities te rccognized as expense in
profit or loss as part of Project Costs account undet Opetating Expenses in the
statement of comptehensive income.

Loans payable ate taised fot support of long-tetm fuodi"g of opetations. This is
recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance chatges, including
ptemiums payable on setdement or redemption and ditgsl issue costs, ate chatged to
profit ot loss on an accnnlbasis using the effective intetest method and ate added to
the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
pedod in which they adse.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only
when the obligatiofls aie extinguished eithet through discharge, cancellation ot
expiration. The difference between the carying amourit of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid ot payable is recognized in ptofit ot loss.

2.8 Olfsetting .Financial Instuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amourt,
considered as a single financial asset or financial liability, is teported in the statemeot

of financial position when the Foundation curtently has l"gdly enfotceable dght to set

off the recognized amounts and thete is an intention to settle on a net basis, ot realize

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The dght of set-off must be available

at tlie end of the reporting pedod, that is, it is not contingent on future eveot. It must

also be enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default, and in the

event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be l.SrXy enforceable fot both entity and

all counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.9 Prouisions and Contingencies

Ptorrisions ate rccogntzed when present obligations will ptobably lead to an outflow of
economic resorrces and they can be estimated teliably even if the timing or arnount of
the outflow may still be wrcettain. A present obligation arises ftom the presence of a.

legal ot constructive obligation that has tesulted ftom past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditute required to settle the ptesent

obrigation,based""*:,:::i:3::"::1"""":::,*:Yl-T"*:if:"1:*X-
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lWhete there ate a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is detetmined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
\When time value of money is matedal,long-tenn ptovisions are discounted to theil
present values s5ing a pretax rurte thzrt reflects market assessments and the risks
specific to the obligation. The inctease in the provision due to passage of time is
tecognized as intetest expense. Ptovisions are rcviewed at the end of each tepoting
period and adiusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is consideted imptobable ot temote, ot the amount to be ptovided fot
cannot be measuted teliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements.
Similady, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Foundation that do not yet
meet the tecognition criteia of an asset are consideted contingent assets, hence, are
not recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement
that the Foundation can be virtually ceftain to collect ftom a thi.d pr.rf with respect
to the obligation is tecognized as a separate asset fiot exceeding the amount of the
related provision.

2.10 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue comprises revenue eamed telated to tendedng of serrices (i.e., extending
loans) measuted by teference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable
by the Foundation for seryices provided, excluding any rebates.

Revenue is tecognized to the extent t}at revenue can be reliably measued; it is
probable that tle economic benefits will flow to the Foundation; and, the cost
incured or to be incuted can be teliably measured. In addition, the following specific
tecognition crrtena must also be met before revenue is tecognized:

(r) Senticefees - Service fees are deducted upftont in fiil upon disbutsemerit of loan
proceeds to the members. Uneamed setvice chatges is tecognized dudng the
month of disbursement and subsequently, earned as reveflue, based on the
effective intetest method of accounring, as the loan is fi.rlly collected ftom the
membets.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a

financial asset ot a frnancialliability and allocating the income over t-he relevarit
pedod. The effective interest rate is the tate that exactly discounts estimated
futute cash flows through the expected usefrrl llfe of the financial instrument ot a
shortet pedod, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset ot financial liability. When calculating the effective interest tate, the
Foundation estimates cash flows considedng all conttactual teflns of the financial
instruments but does not consider futute oedit losses.

Once the recotded value of a financial asset ot Soup of similat financid assets

has been teduced due to an impairment loss, intetest income continues to be
tecognized using the original effective intetest tate used to discount the futue
tecoverable cash flows.

(b) Intenst - Intetest income from cash in banks is recognized as intetest accrues
t kirg into account the effective peld of the asset.



-12-

Costs and experises ate recognized in ptofit or loss upon utilization of the goods
and/ or services or at the date they are incured. Any finance costs ate reported in
ptofit ot loss on an accual basis, except any boffowiflg costs that is telated to a
quali$ring asset that is capitalized as part of the cost of the asset (see Note 2.12).

2.11 Leases - Foundation as Lessee

Leases, which do not ttansfet to the Foundation substantially all the dsks and benefits
of ownership of the asset, are classified as opetating leases. Operating lease paymrents
(net of any incentive teceived ftom the lessot) ate tecognized as expense in profit ot
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and
maintenance and insuarlce, ate expensed as incurred.

The Fonndation determines whetler an attaf,gefrLent is, ot contains, a lease based on
the substance of the arrangemelrt. It makes an assessment of whether the fr:lfillment
of the arrangemefrt is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
atrangement cofiveys a dght to use the asset.

2.12 Employee Benefrts

The Foundation ptovides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined
benefit plan, defined contribution plans, and other employee benefits which are
recognized as follows:

(r) Post-emplolment Defned Beneft Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employrnent benefit that an employee will receive on retiremen! usually
dependent on one ot more factors such as age, years of sernice and salary. The
legal obligation fot any benefits ftom this kind of post-employment plan remains
with the Foundation, even if plan assets for fi.rnding the defined benefit plan have
been acquired. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a
long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifring insurance policies. The Foundation's
defined benefit pension plan covets all tegulat firll-time employees.

The liability tecognized in the statement of financial position fot a defined benefit
plan solely pettains to the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the repoting petiod. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by an independent Lctwary using the ptojected unit cedit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is deternined by discounting the estimated
futute cash outflows fot expected benefit payments using a discount rate dedved
ftom the intetest tates of zeto coupon government bonds as published by the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Coqp., that ate denominated in the curtency in
which the benefits will be paid and that have teflns to matutity apptoximating to
the terms of the related post-employment liability.

Remeasutements, comprising of actuatial gains and losses arising ftom expetience
adjustrnents and changes in actuarial 2ssu mptions ate reflected immediately in the
statemert of financial position with a charge ot credit tecognized in other
comprehensive income in the pedod in which they adse. Intetest expense is

calculated by applying the discountraLte at the beginning of the period, t kirg
account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the petiod as a

result of benefit payments. Interest expense is teported as part of Project Costs
d^^^rrhf ,r-rlor l-lnooo+i-^ E'monoac in +Lp ctafphpfif ^f .^t-nt.h.fiei-. incntnc
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Past-service costs are tecognized immediately in ptofit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment or curtailment.

Po$-employnent D efned Contribution P lans

A defined contdbution plan is a post-employment plan under which the
Foundation pays fixed contributions into an independent entity [such as the
Social Security System (SSS)]. The Foundation has no legal or construcdve
obligations to pay firthet conftibutions aftet payment of the fixed contribution.
The contributions tecognized in rcspect of defined contdbution plans ate
expensed as they fall due. Liabilities ot assets may be recognized if undeqpayment
ot ptepayhxent has occured and are nornally of a short-tefln nature

Terruination Benefits

Tetmination benefits ate payable when employment is terminated by &e
Foundation before the normal retfuement date, ot whenever an employee accepts
voluntary tedundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Foundation recognizes
termination benefits at the eadier of when it can no longet with&aw the offet of
such benefits and when it recognizes costs fot a testructudng that is within the
scope of PAS 37 , Pruttisions, Contingent Uabilbiu and Contingent Assets, and involves
the payment of temination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary tedundancy, the termination benefits ate measuted based on the
numbet of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits faling due more
than 72 months after the end of each repoting pedod are discounted to their
present value.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences arc rccogruzed fot the numbet of paid leave days

(including holiday entitlement) temaining at the end of the reporting period.
They ate included in Other Liabilities account in the statement of financial
position at the undiscounted amount that the Foundation expects to p^y 

^s 
L

tesult of the unused entitlement.

2.12 Botrowing Costs

Bortowing costs are tecognized as expenses in the pedod in which they ate incured,
except to the extent that they arc capitdized. Borowing costs that ate directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or ptoduction of a qualifring asset

(.e., an asset that takes a substantial pedod of time to get rcady for its intended use

or sale) ate capitalTzed as part of cost of such asset. The capitalnaion of borowing
costs com.mences when expenditures fot the asset and borowing costs are being
incured and activities that ate necessary to prepare the asset fot its intended use or
sale are in ptogress. CapioJization ceases when substantially all such activities ate
complete.

Investrnent income eatned on the temporafy investment of specific borowings
pending their expenditute on quali$ring assets is deducted ftom the bomowing costs
eligible for capitalizaaon.

(r)

(d)
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2.13 Fund Balance

Gtants and contdbutions represent the initial contribution teceived by the Foundation
at the start of its operations.

Cumulative tesults of operatiofls represelrt all curent and pdor period results of
operations as teported in the ptofit or loss section of the statemefrt of comprehensive
income.

Remeasurement of post-employment defined benefit plan pertains to the cumulative
balance of rctnioJgains and losses arising ftom expedence adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment defined
benefit obligation.

2.14 Related Patty Relationships and Ttansactions

Related patrF transactions ate ftansfets of tesoutces, services ot obligations between
the Foundation and its related pafiies, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties ate consideted to be related if one party has the ability to conftol the other
p^tty ot exercise significant influence over the othet party in making financial and
operating decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, dfuectly or indirecdy
through one or more intetmsdiaries, conttol or are controlled by, or undet cornmon
control with the Foundation; (b) associates; and (c) individuals owning, directly or
inditectly, an intetest in the voting power of the Foundation that gives them signi-ficant
influence ovet the Foundation and close membets of the family of. any such individual.

In considedng each possible related party telationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the telationship and not metely on the legal fotm.

2.15 Events afret the End of the Repotting Pedod

Any post-yeat-end event that provides additional infotrnation about the Foundation's
statement of financial position at the end of the teporting pedod (adiusting event) is
reflected in the finanoal statements. Post-year-end events that ate not adjusting
events, if any, ate disclosed when material to the financial statements.

SI GNIFI CANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT S AIYD ESTIMATES

The ptepatation of the Foundation's financial statemerts in accotdance with PFRS

tequfues management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statemeflts and telated notes. Judgments and esdmates are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factots,
including expectations of futute events that are believed to be reasonable undet the
circumstances. Actual tesults may ultimately diffet ftom these estitnates.
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3.1 Critical Managementludgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Foundation's accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, apaft from those involving estimation, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial esd.mates:

(r) Distinction betuteen Operating and Finance ltases

The Foundation has entered into various lease rgteements as a lessee. Cdtical
judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agteemeflt as

either an operating or fi.narice lease by looking at the ftansfet or retention of
significant tisk and tewards of ownetship of the ptoperties coveted by the
agteemerts. Failure to make the right judgment will tesult in either overstatement
or undetstatement of assets and liabilities.

Management has assessed that its existing lease agreements quali$r as operating
leases.

(b) Rengnition of Prutidons and Contingencies

Judgment is exetcised by management to distinguish between provisions and
contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies ate
discussed in Note 2.8 mdrelevant disclosutes are presented in Note 18.

3.2 Key Soutces ofEstimation Uncertainty

The following ate the key assumptions concerning the futue, and othet key soutces of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the repoting pedods, that have a significant fisk
of causing a mateial adjustrnent to the c*tryng amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next reporting period:

(r) Inpoinzent of Iaans and OtberRtceiuables

Adequate amount of allowance for impairnent is provided fot specific and
groups of accounts, whete objective evidence of impairrnent exists. The
Foundation evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available
facts and circumstances affecti.g the collectability of the accounts, including, but
not limited to, the tength of the Foundation's relationshiF with the membets, the
membets' cuffent credit status, ar,etage age of accounts, collection experience and
historical loss experience. The methodology and assumptions used in estimating
futute cash flows ate teviewed tegularly by the Foundation to teduce any
diffetences between loss estimates and actual loss exped.ence.

The carying value of loans and other receivables and the analysis of allowance for
impairment on such financial assets ate shown in Note 7.

(b) Estimation of UsefulLiaes ofPnperE and Eqtipnent

The Foundation estimates the usefrrl lives of property and equipment based on
the pedod over which the assets are expected to be available fot use. The
estimated usefrrl lives of property and equipment ate reviewed pedodically and xe -

updated if expectations diffet ftom ptevious estimates due to physical weat and

tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal ot other limits on the use of



(r)

-16-

The carrying amounts of ptoperty and equipment are analyzedin Note 8. Based

on management's assessmeflt as of Decembet37,2076 and2075, there is no
change in estimated usefrrl lives of ptoperty and equipment dudng those years.

Actual results, however, n^y vaxy due to changes in estimates btought about by
changes in factots mentioned above.

Impairment of Pmpe@ and Equipnent

The Foundation's policy on estimating the impairment of property and

equipment is discussed in detail in Note 2.5. Though management believes that
tlle assumptions used in the estimation of the carrying amount of the assets are

apptoptiate and teasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
mrteioJTy rffect the assessment of tecovetable amoufit md my tesulting
impairnent loss could hre a matenal advetse effect on the tesults of opetations.

Management has assessed that there are no indications of impaitment on the
Foundation's propety and equipmeflt at the end of each repoting petiod; hence,

no impairment losses ate tequired to be tecognized on those assets in any of the
tepoting periods.

Valuation of Post-enplolnent Defined Beneft

The determination of the Foundation's obligation and cost of post-employment
defined benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by an

independent acfr:oLry in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include,
among othets, discount rates and salary mte increase. A significant change in any
of these actueial assumptions may genetally affect the tecognized expense, othet
comptehensive income ot losses and the carryng amount of the post-employment
benefit obligation in the next reportiflg period.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis

of the movements in the estimated present value of post-employment benefit
obligation as well as the analysis of the sensitivity of such obligation to the
changes in significant assumptions are ptesented in Note 14.2.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTTVES AND POLICIES

The Foundation is exposed to a vadety of financial tisks which tesult ftom its
opetating and financing activities. The Foundation's tisk management is coordinated
with its BOT, and focuses on actively securing the Foundation's short to medium tetm
cash flows by minimizing the exposrre to financial markets.

The Foundation does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative

purposes nor does it write options.

The most significant finanaa"kisks to which the Foundation is exposed to are

descdbed in the succeeding sections.

(d)

4.
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4.1 Crcdit Risk

Ctedit risk is the risk that a countetparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the
Foundation. The Foundation is exposed to this risk for financial instruments arising
ftom gtanting loans and advances to its members and its employees, and placing
deposits to various local banks.

The Foundation continuously monitors default of its members and other
coufltelparties, identified individually or by gtoup, and incolporate the infonnation
into its ctedit risk conttols. The Foundation's policy is to deal only with creditworthy
countelparties. In addition, loans and othet receivables are secuted by CBU and
LCBU of membets which can be applied against ary amourts due in cases of default
on loan payments.

The maximum credit exposure of financial assets is the carying amount of the
financial assets as shown in the statements of financial position or in the detailed
analysis ptovided in the notes to the financial statements, as summadzed below.

Cash
Loans receivable - net
Othet teceivables
Rental deposits

Notes 2416 201.5

6 P 294,195,551 P262,779,595
7 81398,365,852 5,277,722,799
7 108,671,315 92,727,792
18 21,434.796 15.408.230

P3,822,6fi-tl4 P5597377S06

The credit dsk for cash is consideted neqligible, since the countelparties fie reputable
banks with high quality external uedit tatings. Included in cash are cash in banks
which ate insued by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Colpotation up to a maximum
coverage of P0.5 million for every depositor per banking institution.

Total past due loans amounting toP4.2 million fot 7,377 members andP3.3 million
for 699 membets as of December 31, 2076 and 2015, respectively, have been fiilly
provided with adequate amount of allowance for impairment.

In respect of loans receivable and other receivables, the Foundation is not exposed to
any significant credit dsk exposure to any single countelparty. Significant portion of
the Foundation's loans teceivable pertains to claims ftom various groups of members
with similar chatacteristics. However, the Foundation has no experience of significant
membets'default and historical losses ftom any single Soup of countelparties.

4.2 LiquidityRisk

The Foundation manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitodng scheduled debt
serr.icing payments for long-term financnlliabilities as well as cash outflows due in a
day-to-day business. Liquidity needs ate monitored in vatious time bands, on a

day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a tolling 30-day
proiection. Long-tetm liquidity needs for a six-month and one-year pedod ate
identified monthly.
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The Foundation maintains cash to meet its Iiquidity tequfuements for up to 30-day
pedods. Funding fot long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the abitty to consistently maintain an
effective collection tum-over. As of Decembet 31, 2076 atd,2}7l,pottfolio at risk is
at 0.77oh and 0.07o/o, respectively.

As at Decembet 37,2076, the Foundation's financial liabilities have conftactual
maturities which are preseflted below.

P____-__frSi23iL P_6419.659.078

This compates to the maturity of the Foundation's financial liabilities in the previous
reporting pedod as follows:

CBU andLCBU
Loans payable
Other liabilities

CBU andLCBU
Loans payable
Other liabilities

Finencizl Aesets
Cash
Loans receivable - net
Other receivables
Rental deposits

Financial Liabilities
CBU andLCBU
Loans payable
Other liabilities

Within
Notes 6 montls

e P 4686,6s4108
10 663,113,125
t7 957,522.470

P--II-N1289J91

Within
12 months

P-
61,836,9M

P_____il5369i4

After one year
butwithin 6ve years

P-
50,532,431

Total

P 4,686,654,708
775,482,5N
957.522.470

Within Within
Notes 6 montlrs 12 months

P 3,224,657,957 P -
150,575,000 374636,250
860-316-890 ..

P--A23554ieI P----i12lri$250

9

10

11

After one year
but within five years

P-
65,114,375

Totd

P 3,224,651,951
588,325,625
860.316^890

5.

P______55JU)75 P_4-6n294-4fin

The above contractual maturities reflect the gtoss cash flows, which may differ ftom
the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the teporring pedods.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

5.1 CanyingAmounts and Fair Yalues by Categoty

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at
Lmort'laed cost Presented in the statements of financial position are shown below
(amounts in thousands).

)Nq
Carryirg Fair

Notes Vdues Valum

P 294,196 P 294,196
8J98,366 8398J66

L08,671 108,67L
21.435 2t-435

P-EJ22,66E P-E 822{68

P 4,528,168 P 4,528,168
770,000 770$00
957.5Xr, 9571522

P______6r55.690 P____6r55,690

6

7

7

18

9

10

77

Can7rg
Values

P 262,120
5,217,723

92,127
15.408

P__15II7178

P 3,115,606
579,000
860,377

P__-_A554223.

Fair
Values

P 262,120
5,217,723

92,127
15,408

P__1587378

P 3,115,606
579,000
860-317

P___4554.923.

Management considers that the carrying amount of the Foundation's financial assets

and financial liabilities measured at amorilzed cost approximates the fair values due to
its short term duration.
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5.2 Otrsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets with gtoss amoults presented in the statements of
financial position ate subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similat agteemerits (amounts in thousands):

Gross amounts
recognized in

the statement of
Notes financialposition

Related amounts not set-offin the

Financial Colleteral
instruments received Net a.mount

December 31,2016

f,oans receivables
Otler receivables

Total

Decmber 31.2015

Loans teceivables
Other receivables

TotaI

December 31,2016

Loans payable

Decmber 31,2015

Loans payable

7,9,10
7,17

7,9,10
7,77

P 8,398,366 ( P 5,128,168 ) P
108.671

P_8.[0Z&17 (P____5I2EJ6E)

P 5,217,723 ( P 3,545,606 )
92-727 ( 63.12s)

P 3,270,'t98
108-671

Gross amountg
recognized in

the statement of
Note financial position

P . 

- 

T-:!J7EJ69

P 1,672,117
29.002

Related amounts not set-offin the

Financial Collateral
instruments received Net amount

P_______1109-ei0 (P__-__1"608J11) P-_ p_L70L119

The following financial liabilities with gtoss amounts presented in the statements of
financial position are subiect to offsetting, enforceable master netting affangements
and similar agteements (amounts in thousands):

E________lz0o00 (P_---___-60tloql) P- E_____120.000

P----------579-09) (P----------rt30im) P- P-149-004

6.

Fot the financial assets and frnmcu,l liabilities (i.e., loans and other receivables and the
related loans payable, CBU and LCBU balance and Staff CBL) subiect to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar affangements above, each agteernent between
the Foundation and counte{parties allows for net setdement of the relevant financial
assets and financiql liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence
of such an election, financial assets and, frnxrctal liabilities will be settled on a gross
basis, howevet, each patry to the mastet flettirlg agreement or similar agreement will
have the option to settle all such amounts on a flet basis in the event of default of the
othet party.

CASH

The Foundation's cash in bank balance as of December 37, 201,6 zfrd 2075 amounted
toP294.2 million LndP262.1, million, respectively. Cash in banks genetally eam
intetest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Interest earned ftom cash in banks amoulted to P3.0 million air;.dP2.g million 1ln2016

Lnd 2015, respectively, and is presented as part of Othet Revenues account in the
statements of comptehensive income (sge Note 12).
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None of the Foundation's savings deposits were held as secutity for arry of the
Foundation's liabilities at the end of the repoting periods.

LOANS AND OTHER RECEryABLES

These accounts include the following:

7.1 Loans Receivable

Loans teceivable as at December 31 consist of:

As of Decembet 31, 2076 and2075,rhe Foundation has 7,273,736 and 1,073,580

active members, resp ectively.

Loans teceivable represent mictofinance loans gtanted to the Foundation's members.
These loans have terms of six months and are pafilllLy secured by the tespective
caryngamounts of CBU and LCBU of individual members (see Note 9). These
loans are subject to a nominal rate of 157o service charge all throughout the six-month
term. Setvice fees eamed ftom these loans amounted to P3,904.1. miilion and
P2,284.6 million tn 2016 and 2075, respectively , znd are shown as Service Fees in the
statements of comptehensive income.

The Foundation's loans receivable has been teviewed fot indications of impairment.
Certain receivables were found to be impaired; hence, adequate amourit of allowance
fot impairment has been tecognized accordingly.

A teconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2076 an.d

2015 is shown below.

Loans receivable
Uneamed service charges

Allowance for impairment

Balance at beginningof year
Impairment loss during the yeat
!7rite-o ff o f receivables

previously ptovided
with allowance

Balance at end ofyear

2016 2015

P 9,777 15221725 P6,469,827,900
( 937-137-5731 r 843.889.801)

8,840,385,152 5,625,932,099
( 442.019.300) ( 408.209.310\

P9t98J65,852 P52L1-12J39

Notes 2016 2415

P 408,209,310 P 275,770,240
13 67,830,735 150,133,980

20.2(c) ( 34,020,145) (. 17.694.910)

E-A42.J04939A P--408209*310

Loans receivable wdtten-off lD 2016 and 2075 pertain to the outstanding balance of
loans granted to 8,140 and 5,521 members or 0.6oh or 0.5o/o of active membets,

respectively.
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Certain loans receivable of the Foundation amounting to P759.1. million and
P750.5 million as of Decemb er 37, 2076 and 2015, tespectively, were assigned with
recourse to local banks as secudty to the Foundation's bortowings ftom these local
banks (see Note 10).

7.2 Othet Receivables

Other teceivables consist of personal and mobility loans, and nonintetest-beadng '

advances gtanted to the Foundation's personnel with total carrying amount of
P108.7 million andP92.7 million as of December.37,2016 and 2015, tespectively.
A standatd serr.ice fee of 10% is chatged fot a six-month term loan in both of the
repoting pedods and is rccognized as service charges on employee loans under
Othet Revenues accourit in the statements of comptehensive income (see Note 12).

These loans ate paid by employees every pay pedod tfuough sil^ry deductions.

As of December 37,2076 and 2015, othet teceivables were reviewed for indications
of impainnent and none has been notedl hence, other receivables ate unimpaired and
firlly tecoverable at its carrying amourits as at the tepoting periods based on the
assessment of management.

8. PROPERTYAND EQUIPMENT

The gross catytngamounts and accumulated depteciation and amortization of
propetty and equipment at the beginning and end of 2016 and 2075 ate shown below.

Building
and OIfice Fumiture and Equipment

Imorovements Fixtures and Yehicles Total

December 31,2016
Cost P 65,678,584 P167,013A10 P 26,984,553 P259,676,547
Accumulated depreciation

and amortization ( 11.108.329) ( 109,525,429) ( 71-459-989) ( 132-093:747)

Net carrying amount P--iL520155 P--17187.981 P---16,52A5@ P-jU?lEZEgI

December 31,2015
Cost P 65,678,584 P 124,327,964 P 11,504,553 P 201,511,701
Accumulated depreciation

and amortization (" 6.729-784) (, 79-184,576) ( 7-124-847) ( 93.039201)

Net calrying amount P--18-218-800 P--i5J4338e P----A379J12 Pl08-42t900

Janrary 1,2015
Cost P 65,678,584 P 87,299,609 P 70,725,701 P763,703,894
Accumulated depreciation

and amortization ( 2,351.184) ( 58-514569) ( 5,600-741) ( 66-466-494)

Net canying amount P---53327A09. P-28J85-040 P----5J24959 P---9723LM.
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A teconciliation of the catrying amounts of propety and equipment at the beginning
and end of 2016 ar,d2015 is shown below.

Building
and Office

Imorovements

Balance at Jar:oary 1, 201 6,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization P 58,948,800

Additions
Depreciation and

amortization charges
for the year ( 4-378.545)

Balance at December 31,2016,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Balance at Jar;rluary 1, 2015,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Additions
Depreciation and

mortrzfiton chatges
for the year

Ptoject costs
General and adminisftadve

P___3ui70255 P---57rffi7J81 P___7542t564 P-iUZ5E2-E00

Fumiture and
Fixtures

P 45,143,388
42,685,446

( 30.340.853)

Equipment
and Yehicles

P 4,379,712
1sy'80,000

( 4^335.148)

Total

P 108,471,900
58,165,446

r 39.054.546)

Balance at December 31,2015,
net of accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

The amount of depreciation and atrofrzu tjon is allocated
of comptehensive income as follows (see Note 13):

P 63,327,400 P 28,785,040
37,028,355

P 5,124,960
778,852

P_A319J12

and teported

P 97,237,400
37,807 207

P--108J2L900

in the statements

( 4378,600) ( 20,670.007) ( 1.s24.100) ( 26.s72,707\

P-l8ji18-800 P--r1L143388

2016

P 27,092,931
1L,96u15

P____39-054546

2075

P 77,577,627
9.055,096

P___%512JM

9. CAPITAL BUILD.UP AND LOCKED IN CAPITAL BUILD.UP

This account is btoken dourn as follows:

20t6

P 3,825,943,160
702,225,060

P_4,52f.x6822fi

2075

P2,593,273,030
522,332.720

P-LLI-5J05J5)

CBU
LCBU

Note
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CBU pertains to weekly savings of P50 or more, that each membet maintain duting
the fust loan rycle, which earns rebates of up to 7oh per affnrm. On the succeeding
loan cycles, the membets have to maintain abilance equivalent to at least 75oh of ldte
availed ptinctpal loan. Rebates are computed and released to clients on the first week
of December every year.

LCBU is a nonintetest beadng, altemative savings that is locked in as to member
with&awal. The weekly contdbution is fixed at P10. When the LCBU reaches
P2,400,50oh of such is transferred to CBU.

All active membets of the Foundation are required to maintain their CBU and LCBU
contributions based on prescribed minimum levels.

The collected CBU and LCBU or mico-savings is for pu1poses of maintaining a
comPensa ng balance, which is used to offset against the membet's outstanding
balance in case of default. Historically, default rates for the last tlree years have not
exceeded 7oh of the carrying balance of loans receivable as at the reporting periods.

LOANS PAYABLE

The composition of the Foundation's outstanding bank loans is shown below.

To enable the Foundation to provide unintemrpted mictofinance loans to membem in
accordance with the Foundation's microfinance program, the Foundadon, as part of
its cash managemeng obtains financing through bank loans ftom vadous financial
institutions andf or organiz*ion.

As of Decembet 31, 2016 and 2015, the Foundation is compliant rilrit} all the secudty
requirements and covenaflts imposed by the respective creditor.

The summarized tetms and conditions of each availed loan as at Decembex 37,2076
and,2015 are as follows:

Current
Noncurrent

Outstanding
Princinal Ralance lnterest Rate

2fi16 2015

P 200,000,000 P 150,000,000 Frxedat4.Soh

200,000,000 150,000,000 Fixed at 4.5%

200,000,000 130,000,000 Ftxed tt 4.3oh

Secured, assigned receivables

P399.4 million and
P 1 97.8 million, respectively

Secured, assigned receivables
P259.7 million and

P 249. 6 mlllioo' respectively
Secured, assigned receivables

P100.0 milliol 21d
P303. 1 million, respectively

Unsecured
Unsecured

2016 201s

P 720,000,000 P 514,000,000
50.000,000 65,000.000

P_770J100J00 P__5791D0-000

Secrrtitw Maturiw date

2017

2017

2017

2018
2016

170,000,000 125,000,000 Ftxedat4.5oh
24-000-000 None

P___770.00m00 Pl79lD[000
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Interest expense on intetest-beadng loans amounted to P29.9 million and
P16.1 millionlra2016 and201,5,tespectively, and is presented part of Finance Costs
undet Ptoject Costs account in the statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 13).

OTHER LIABILITIES

This account includes the following:

2016 2015

Beneficiary progam and
support trust fund (BPSTO

Staff benevolent fund
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable
Staff cash bond
StAff CBU

P 622,551,800
1:l5,294,500
159,676,170
63J-04,737

P 448,430,620
95,263,400

747,844,340
22,575,363

722,690,600
63-724,700

P7"A2u2:1J.trt P__893S59^023

BPSTF tepresents 0.5oh of every pdncrpal amount of loan teleased to each membet.
The cumulative trust fund is used to cover the payment of aloan in case of death of a
member, ptovide assistance to membets in cases of fire, and covet losses in case of
tobbery and hold-up of loan officets while exetcising efforts of collection ftom
members.

Effective onJaruaty 7,2012, a flew policywas implemented by the Foundation
requidng each new gtoup member to contdbute P50 as gtoup membets'contdbution
to the BPSTF Fund. The contdbutions fomr part of the BPSTF as additional fund for
health-care program, death benefiq hospitalization benefit, scholatship to the childten
of the qualified members, and provision fot distribution of telief goods and other
livelihood support intervention in time of calamities such as typhoons, fitss,
earthquakes and floods.

Staff benevolent fund includes amounts set aside fot employee hospitalization,
employee death aid, and employee welfare and benefits.

Accrued expenses include accruals fot vatious expenses for the operations of the
Foundation such as taxes and licenses, light and teimbursable expenses, travel, and
tepairs and maintenarrce.

Accounts payable include withholding taxes payable and unclaimed benefits of
tesigned petsonnel dudng the teporting periods.

Staff cash bond teptesents tefirndable security deposits made by employees.

Pursuant to Department of Labot Advisory No. 11-14, Non-Interfercnce in tlte DiEosal of
lYages and Allowable Deductions, the Foundation tetumed staff cash bond and staff CBU
with balance as of Decembet 31,2075 amounting toP722.7 million and P63.1 million,
tespectively.
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Staff CBU are mandatory but withdtawable contdbutions made by the Foundation's
employees that eam interest at7oh per annum. This also serves as the Foundation's
credit protection sftategF fot any uncollectible advances ptovided to its personnel in
cases of default on payrneflt.

OTHER REYENUES

This account includes the following:

Notes

7.2
6

2016 2015

P 7,759,090
2,9701563

745,462

P_JL{15J15

P 2,889,009
2,gg7,5gg

4g5,991

P_62J2^5s7

OPERATING EXPENSES

The details of opetating expenses by natute ate shown below.

L3.

Service charges on
employee loans

Interest income on bank deposits
Gain ftom tecovery of

written-off accounts

Finance costs

D epreciation and amor ilzad'on
Light and water
Postage and telephone
Professional fees

Miscellaneous

Employee benefits
Travel and transportation
Taxes and licenses

Office tental
Staff development and

confetence
Repafus and maintenance
Impaitment loss 7.1

Office supplies and teptoduction
Gtants and donations

Notes 2016

75,74.1 P 1,437,532,021
3421581,989

20.1CI 202,968,546
1g 102,224,478

70,14.2
8

92,531,751
89,189,039
67,830,7i5
50,489,454
4019891796

40r019,315

39,454,546
32,0521946

27,773,992
7,6741886

16,470,931

P2*5893&1S25

2075

P 944,047,797
287,975,477
265,467,753

78,235,370

42,798,057
54,369,834

150,133,980
35,71,4,339
74,028,625

27,534,855
26,572,707
76,332,257

76,404,627

3,946,739
76,617.548

v1^961^5t2Ji6
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These expenses ate classified and reported in the statements of comptehensive income
as follows:

2016 2075

Ptoiect costs
Genetal and administrative

expenses

Ptoject costs are btoken down as follows:

P 2,071,110,773 P 7,529,240,749

518,273,052 439.337,987

P2589J&1825 vJ951*51.2*7i6

Employee benefits
Ttavel and tansportation
Office tental 18

Repafus and maintenance
Staff development and

confetence
Impairment loss 7.1

Office supplies and reproduction

Notes

'1,4.7,15

2016

P1,214,209r744
323,697,500
101,522,478
85,281,839

76,941,261
67,830,7i5
46,640,107
40,019,375
32,516,862
27,288,358
27,0921831
15,910,600
12,159,743

E2,M7Jt0J1i

P 223,322,277
187,057,946
32,052,946
18,884,489

15,590,490
11,961,775

8,412,934
7,398,268
3,907,200
3,9491347

702,000
5,073.440

P__578273.052

2075

P 828,31,1,,479

267,479,926
77,533,370
52,578,982

37,939,664
150,133,990

34,290,093
27,534,955

9,502,339
75,697,666
77,517,627
11,659,229
10.588,656

P_1,52jJ40J42

Finance costs
Postage and telephone
Light and water
Depteciation and amofrzaion
Taxes and licenses
Miscellaneous

Employee benefits
Taxes and Iicenses
Grants and donations
Ttavel and ttansportation
Staff developmerit and

2015

P 115,729,702
253,807,924

74,028,625
20,956,645

4,259,393
9,055,096
6,902,283
3,725,535
1,850,852
7,424,255

702,000
6.890,687

P__4i93i7-9e7

70,74.2

8

20.1ff)

The details of general and adminisftative expenses are shown below.

Notes 2016

74.1,15
20.10

confetence
Depteciation aod amorazaion 8

Postage and telephone
Professional fees

Repaits and maintenance
Office supplies and teproduction
Office rental
Miscellaneous

18
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

14.1 Salaries and Employee Benefrts Expense

Expenses tecognized for salaries and othet employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2016 2015

Salaries and wages
Post-employment benefits
SSS, HDMF,

Philhealth conttibutions
Staff benevolent fund

Ptoject costs
General and administrative

P1,109,797,222 P 924,027,677
14.2 189,617,596

78,942,403

43,445,700

59,520,320
59,174,800 17.048.150

73 LA37-532.021 P___g44A41,JBL

The amounts of employee benefits ate zTTocated and reported in the statements of
comprehensive income as follows (see Note 13):

2016 201s

P1,214,209,744 P 828,377,479
223.322.277 715.729.702

ylAiT-L12,021 P__944-041-181

14.2 Post-employment Defrned Benefit PIan

k) Cbaracteistics of the Defned Beneft Plan

The Foundation maintains an unfunded and noncontributory post-employment
defined benefit plan covedng all tegulat fuIl-time employees. The Foundation
does not have a formal, trusteed retirement plan.

In201,6, the anticipated retirement benefit set by management incteased
ftom 100% to 750oh of basic salary p^y p$year of. service. Benefits are to be
paid in lump sum, upon retitement or sepamtion.

(b) Explanation of Amounts Pnsented in tbe Financial Statements

Actuarial valuations ate rnade annually to update the post-employrnent benefit
costs and obligation. All amounts presented in the succeeding pages are based
on the actuaialvaluation report obtained ftom an independent acttsary tfl 2016
and2015.
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The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

2016 2075

The components of amounts recognized in ptofit ot loss and in othet
comptehensive income in respect of the post-employment defined benefit plan arc
as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Past service cost
Curent service cost
Intercst expense
Remeasurements - actuadal losses

(gri", atising ftom changes in:
Expedence adjustments
Financial assumptions

Benefits paid

Balance at end of yeat

Rtported in pruft or lnss:

Past service cost
Curent service cost
Intetest expeflse

Rcported in other comprchensiae ircome:

Actuadal losses (gains) adsing
ftom changes in:

Expedence adjus trnents
Financial assumptions

Ptoject costs

General and adminis ft ative

P 207,273,100
125,736,649
63,880,947
10,156,382

( 17,160,213)
( 10,210,387) (

P 120,232,500

43,445,1"00

5,398,450

46,389,199
7,628,099)

( 2.462.378) ( 564.050)

P___371-2;LL$n P____2e1273J99

2016 2015

P 125,736,649 P

63,880,947 43,445,700

10,156.382 5.398.450

P---199Jji"Yl3 P-----r18&13J50

(P 17,160,273) P 46,389,799
( to-210.387) ( 7-628.099)

(P____27-31!t 60A) P_____l&76L100

2016 201.5

P 129,319,201 P 30,471.,570

60,298,395 73-033-530

Retirement benefi.t expense is allocated and ptesented in the statements of
comptehensive income undet the following classification:

P_189-6U516 P______43.445.100

The intetest expense on the obligation is included as part of Finance Costs
undet the Ptoject Costs account in the statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 13).

Amounts tecognized in othet comptehensive income or loss wete included
within item that will not be teclassified subsequefltly to profit or loss.
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In detenrrining the amounts of the post-employmeflt defined benefit obligation,
the following significant 

^"aa2iel 
assunptions wete used:

2016 2075

Discount tates
Expected rate of salary incteases

Decembet 31.2016

Discounttate +7.8%/-8.7% (P
Salarygtowthtate +7.1%/-6.6%

Decembet 31- 2015

Discounttate +8.5%/-9.5% (P
Salary gtowth tate +7.8o/o/-7.3%

29,559,088) P 32,798190

26,947,103 ( 26,068,777)

17,688,618) P 19,7L3,593
76,230,507 ( L5,047,346)

5.4%
f2.0%

4.9%
12.00h

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and
mottality tables. The average remaining wotking lives of an individual tetiting at

the age of 60 is 34 for males 
^fid 

34.8 for females. These assumptions were
developed by management with the assistance of an independent actuary.
Discount factors are determined close to the end of each repoting petiod by
reference to the interest mtes of a zero coupon government bond with terms to
matutity approximating to the tetms of the post-employrnent obligation. Other
assumptions ate based ofl cuffent acbtqi^Lbenchmatks and management's
histotical expedence.

k) Otherirfomation

The information on the sensitivity analysis fot cettain significant acfriattal
assumptions and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows telated to the
retitement planar:e descdbed below.

(, SensitiuiryAnafisi.r

The following table summqizes the effects of changes in the significant
acttzialassumptions used in the determination of the post-employment
defined benefit obligation as of Decembet37,2076 and2075:

Impact on Post-employment Defined
Benefit Oblkation

Change in Incease in Deuease in
Assumption Assumption AssumPtion

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be teptesentative
of the rct:nl change in the post-employmefit defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be corelated. Furthermore, in presenting the

above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the post-employment defined
benefi.t obligation at the end of the teporting pedod has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method, which is the same as that applied in calculating

the post-employment defined benefit obligation recogrrized in the statement of
financial position.
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The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
did not change compated to the previous years.

(it) Funding Arangements and Expected Contribfiion

At the end of the rcpotting pedod, the Foundation has flot yet established its
fu"di"g plan for post-employment defined benefit obligation. While thete ate
no minimum furdiog requfuements in the country, the size of the undeffirnding
may pose a cash flow dsk in about eight years' time when a significant numbet
of employees is expected to retire.

In one to ten years, the Foundation's undiscounted expected benefit payments
ftom the plan amount to Pl1.4 million and P3.8 million at the end of 2016 and
2015 respecti".ly.

As of December 31, 201,6,the weighted averlge dutation of the post-employment
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting pedod is eight yea6.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation's related party includes its key management personnel. The
compensation given to key managemeflt personnel in the form of shoft-term benefits
amounted to P50.4 million and P59.4 million tn201,6 and201.5, respectively; while
post-employment benefits amounted toP23.9 million andP4.4 million n2076 and
2015, tespectively and is presented as part of Employee Benefits account under
Opetating Expenses in the statemerits of comptehensive income (see Note 13).

TAXATION COYERAGE AND EXEMPTIONS

The Foundation is a nonstock, nonptofit cotporation and the primag, pulpose of
which is one of those enumerated in Section 30 of the Tax Reform Act of 1997

S.A No. 8424). No part of the excess of revenues over expeflses of the Foundation
inutes to the benefit of any of its membets, employees, key officers or boatd of
trustees. The trustees do not teceive any compensation, except fot inconsequential
honorarium to deftay costs incurred in attending board meetings. In case of
dissolution, the assets of the Foundation shall be ftansfeffed to a similar institution or
to the goyernmeflt in the absence of the fotmer. Howevet, despite its tax exempt
status, the Foundation received income tax assessmeots amoufiting to Prc7.7 million
andP727.3 million pertaining to taxable yeats 2075 and2074,which wete settled in
full in 2076 and 2015, respectively.

On Novembet 3,2075, Republic Act 10693 otherwise known as the "Micmfinance

NGOsAct' (the Act) was signed into law. The Act provides that duly tegisteted and
microfinance NGOs shall be eligible to the prefercntial tax Eeatrnent of two Percent
QYQ based on its gtoss receipts ftom micofinance operations in Iieu of all national
taxes. In 2016, the Foundation paid gross rcceipts t " (GRT) a6sslting to
P80.7 million [see Note 20.1,(fl1. Moteovet, income dedved by the Foundation ftom
its ptopetties, real or personal, or ftom any of its activities not coveted by the
exemption or activities conducted for profit regardless of the disposition made of such

income, is subject to tax.

16.
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FUND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIYES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Foundadon's capital malragement objectives are to generate funds to expand its
mictofinance opetations by collecting serrice fees at rates commensurate to the level
of risk, to facilitate the convergence and provision of other social services to the poot,
and to ensure the Foundation's sustainability to continue as a going coflcern.

The Foundation monitors funds on the basis of the carrying amount of the firnd
balance as presented in the statements of financialposition.

The Foundation sets the amount of fund in proportion to its overall financing
structure, i.e., fund balance and loans ftom thfud paties. The Foundation manages the
fund structute and makes adjustnents to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk chatactetistics of the undedying assets.

18.

Total loans ftom third parties
Total fund balance

Extemal loans-to-fund tatio

2016 2015

P 770,000,000 P 579,000,000
2,253,640,787 900,771,833

0.34:1.00 0.64:1.00

The Foundation has satisfactorily complied with its covenart obligations related to its
interest-bearing loans as of the end of each reporting pedods (see Note 10).

COMMITMENTS ANID CONTINGENCIES

18.1 Opetating Lease Commiunents - Foundation as Lessee

The Foundation has opetating lease agteements covering vadous office spaces

occupied by the Foundation and its braflches for a period of six months to two years.
The lease agteemeflts requfue the Foundation to pay tental deposits. Outstanding
rental deposits as of December.37,2076 and2015 amounted to P27.4 million and
P15.4 million, respectively, and are shown as Rental Deposits in the statements of
financial position.

As of Decembet 31, 2076 and 2015, future minimum lease payments undet these
noncancellable opetating leases vrithin one year amounted toP79.6 million and
P 44.0 million, respectively.

Rent expense recognized related to these operating leases amounted toP702.2 million
n2016 andP78.2 million tflz}7s,which are allocrted to both Ptoject Costs and
Genetal and Adminisftative Expenses under Operating Expenses account in
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 13).

18.2 Others

There are other commitnents and contingencies that arise in the normal course of the
Foundation's operations which are not reflected in the financial statements. As of
Decembet 37,2076 and 2015, maflagement is of the opinion tlat losses, if any, that
may arise ftom these commitrnents and contingencies will not have a material effect
on the Foundation's fi.nancial statements.
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EYENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

As apptoved by the BOT on November 77,2016, the Foundation entered into a Facility
Agteement (the Agreement) as colporate notes issuer, with thtee local universal banks as

initial noteholders, Credit Guatantee & Investment Facility (a trust fund of the Asian
Development Barrk) as gurantor, and BPI Capital Coqpotation as mandated lead
aranget and bookrunnet. Based on the Agreement which was signed on

Janwary 26,2077, the initial noteholders grant to the Foundation a loan facility with a

maximum pri""rp^l amount ofP2.0 billion, subiect to telease in not more than thtee
ttanches starting February 2077 toJanvry 2078.

As of March20,2077, the Foundation has drawn P1.0 billion tepresenting the first
tranche. As approved by the BOT, the net proceeds of the issuance of the notes shdl be

used by the Foundation for financing its expansion plans, paFng off its existing bank
Ioans payable, and for other genetal cotporate pu{poses.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Ptesented below is the supplementary information which is required by the Buteau of
Internal Revenue (BIR) undet its existing teveflue tegulations to be disclosed as part
of the notes to finarl,c:uJ statements. This supplementarF information is not a tequked
disclosute under PFRS. All information are presented in theit absolute amounts.

20.l Requirements undet Revenue Regilations (RR) No. 15-2010

The inforrnation on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued dudng the taxable
year required under RR No. 15-2010 ar.e as follows:

(a) Outptt Value-addcd Tax (VAT)

The Foundation has not incurred any output tax liability fot the yeat ended
Decembet 37,2076 as it has flo revenue ftansactions subject to VAT
(see Note 16).

(b) InputVAT

The Foundation did not recogrize any input VAT. It tecords all input VAT on
purchases of goods and serrrices as expeflse ot part of cost of assets since it would
not be tecoveted ftom setting-off with any output tax liability in the futue.

(c) Dorunentary Stanp Tax

The Foundation paid documentary stamp tax (DST) 1112016 amounting to
P4.7 million, which is related to the sevetal loans originated dudng theyeat

[see Note 20.1(fl].

(d) Taxes on Importailon

The Foundation did not incur or pay any customs' duties andtaiff fees as it did
not have any impottation fot the yeat ended December 37,2076.

20.
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(e) Excin Tax

The Foundation did not have any ftansactions in 2016, which ate subiect to excise
tax.

A Taxes and Licenses

The details of Taxes and Licenses account lrr2016 ate shown below.

Income tax BIR assessment
GRT
Licenses and permits
DST
Real estate taxes
Local taxes

P 701.,710,861

80,651.,452
13,906,605
4,724,026
7,443,391.

632.221

P__?,92,958,546

and presented in the 2016
(see Note 13):

P 15,910,600
787,057,946

P_2,A2,968,546

P 53,267,221
779.421

P___54146,642

Notes

1,6

20.1(c)

k) lVitbboldingTaxes

*" 6"tails of total withholding taxes for the yeat ended December 37,2076
ate shown below.

The amounts of taxes and licenses ate allocated
statement of comptehensive income as follows

Project costs
Genetal and administtative expenses

Compensation and employee benefits
Expanded

The Foundation has no ffansactions subject to final withholding taxes during the
ye,d.

20.2 Requitements under RR No. 19-2011

RR No. 79-2017 requfues schedules of taxable reveflues and other non-operating
income, costs of salis and services, itemized deductions and othet significant tax
infonnation, to be disclosed in the fiotes to financial statements.

The amounts of taxable revenues and income, and deductible costs and expenses

presented in the succeeding p^ge fie based on relevant tax tegulations issued by the
BIR; hence, may not be the same as the amounts reflected in the 2016 statement of
comprehensive income.
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ExemplReaenues

The Foundation's exempt reveflues fot the yeat ended December 37,2076
amounted to P3,904,067,064 pertaining to seryice fees.

Exenpt Non operating and Other Income

The composition of the Foundation's exempt non-operating and other income for
the yeat ended December 37,2076 is presented below.

Service chatges on employee loans
Gain from recovery of

written-off accouflts

Employee benefits
Travel and transportation
Taxes and licenses
Office rental
Staff development and confetence
Repafus and maintenance
Impairment losses
Office supplies and reptoduction
Postage and telephone
Interest on borowed funds
D epreciation and amorizaiort
Gtants and donations
Light and water
Professional fees
Association dues
Efltertaklment, amusement and

tecteadon
Miscellaneous

P 7,759,090

745.462

P_8-!04t52

(r) Non-deductibhExpenses

The details of the Foundation's itemized deductions under exempt transactions for
the year ended December 37,2016 are as follows:

P 7,437,532,021,
342,591,999
202,969,546
L02,224,478
92,537,751
89,789,039
67,830,135
50,499,454
40,989,796
40,079,315
39,054,546
32,052,946
27,773,992

7,674,886
7,791,257

217,251
15-062.423

P2589.3&L825

MAR 29
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Report of Independent Auditors
to Accompany Supplementary Information
Required by the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission Filed Sepatately
from the Basic Financial Statements

The Boatd of Trustees
ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc.
(A Nons tock, Nonprofrt Oryanization)
15e Floor Prestige Tower, F. Ortigas Jr. Steet
Ortigas Centet, Pasrg City

We have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial
statements of ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. for the year ended December 37,2076, on

which we have rendered oru report dated March 20,2077. Our audit was made for the

pu{pose of fonrring an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Intelpretadons Adopted by the

Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Council as of
December 37,2076,is presented for puqposes of additional analysis in compliance with the

requirement under Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and is not a tequired pat of the basic

frnzncialstatements in accordance with Philippine Financial Repoting Standards. Such

supplementary information is the rcsponsibility of management. The supplementary

information has been subiected to the auditng procedues applied in the audit of the basic

financial statements an{ in our opinion, is faidy stated in all material respects in telation to

the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

Punongbayan & Araullo
20hFloor, Tower 1

The Enterprise Center

6766 Ayala Avenue

1200 Makati City
Philippines

I +6329882288
F +63 2 886 5506
grantthornton.com.ph

Certified Public Accountants
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm

CPA Reg. No. 0090741
TrN 109-228-427

PTR No. 5908629, Janvry 3, 2017, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation

Partnet - No. 0395-AR-3 (until May 79,2079)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-4 (uatil Apt. 30, 2018)

BIR AN 08-002511-19-2015 (until Mar' 18, 2018)

Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Dec. 31,2078)

ol Grant Thornton lnternational Ltd



ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc.
Schedule of Philippine Finaacial Reporting Stmdards md Interpretations

Adopted by the Securities md Exchange Comission and the
Financial Reporting Stmdads Comcil as of December 31, 2016

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Fr+mework for the Preparation and Pregentation ofFinancial Statements

Jonceptual Framework Phase A. Obiectives md Qualitative Chracteristics

Practice Statement Management Comelttry

Philippine Financial Reponiog Sandade (PFRS)

PFRS 1

(Revised)

Fimt-time Adoption of Philippine Finmcid Reporting Sandards

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exmptions for Fint-tioe Adopten

Amendmens to PFRS 1: I imited Exmption fmm Compaative PFRS 7 Dsclosues forFimt-
time Adopters

{mendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Rmoval of Fixed Date for
;irst-time Adopten

\mendments to PFRS 1: Govment Ioms

PFRS 2

Shrebased Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellatioro

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cmh-setded Shrc-bmed Payment Trmactions

Amendments to PFRS 2: Clxsification md Maslment of Sbrc-bred Payment
Iransactions (effectiu laruan L 201 8)

PFRS 3
1Revired) Susiness Combinations

PFRS 4

.nsuance Contracts

{mendments to PAS 39 md PFRS 4: Finmcial Gutrmtee Conkrcts

\mendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Fhrarcial lxt*ncils,virthPFRS 4, hsurana
lonra* (cffcaiw latun l, 2018)

rFRS 5 $on-mnt Assets Held for Sale md Discoatilued Operatiom

PFRI} 6 Exploration for md Evalution of Miseral Resouas

PFRS 7

Finmcial Imtrments: Disdosues

Amendments to PFRS 7: Trmsition

{mendmens to PAS 39 aod PFRS 7: Redmsification of Fimcial Assets

{mendmens to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Redmsification of Finmcial Asses - Effective Date and
lrmsition

Amendmenb to PFRS 7: lmproving Disdosues about Fimcial Imtrments

Amendmeots to PFRS 7: Disclosues - Transfers of Finmcial Asses

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosues - Offsetting Fimcid Assets md Finmcial Liabilities

Ameodments to PFRS 7: Mmdatory Effrctive Date of PFRS 9 md Tmition Disdosues*
(ffiaiu wben PFRS 9 it fira abplied)

PFRS 8 3puating Segmens

PFRS 9 Finmcid Imtrmenb (2014)* (cfiaiu Jauary l, 201 8)

PFRS 10

lonsolidated Finmcial Statemenrs

{mendmens to PFRS 10: Tmsition Guidmce

\mendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

Amendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Cootribution of Assets between an Inrestor md its
Associate or Joint yeanxe (effectiu datt dfimd iruhfuitch)

Amendmens to PFRS 10: Investment Entities - Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 1I

loint Arnngmens

Amendments to PFRS 11: Trmsition Guidance

{mendments to PFRS 11: Accounting forAcquisitiom of Interests inJoint Opaations

PFRS 12

)isdosrc of Interests itr Other Entities

tmendments to PFBS 12: Transition Guidance

{mendments to PFRS 12: Investmeot Eotities

\mendmene to PFRS 10: lnvestment Entities - Applying the Coosolidatioo Exception

PFRS 
':t

jair Yalue Mmsrement

PFRS 14 tegulatory Deferral Acomts

PFRS 15 tevene from Contract with Customest (cfiaia Jarury l, 2018)

PFRS 16 lnxes* (efiediu Jaruary 1, 2019)

Philippiae Accomting Staadade (PAS)

PAS 1

(Revised)

Presentation of Finmcial St2tments

\mendments to PAS 32 md PAS 1: Puttable Finmcial Instnments md Obligatioos Arising
rn Liquidation

{mendmens to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Otiu Comprehemive Income

Amendments to PAS 1: Disdosrc lnitiative

rAs 2 Inventories

PAS 7
itatement of Cmh Flows

Amendmeots to PAS 7: Disclosure lnitiative* (cfcaiu lauary I , 2017)

PAS 8 lqgeunting Policies, Chaages in Accomthg Estimates md Ercrs

PAS 10 Events After tie Reporting Period

PAS 1T lonstruction Contrects

PAS 12

.ncome Taxes

\mendments to PAS 12 - Defercd Tu: Recovery of Undedying Assets

lmendmeots to PAS 12 - Rmognition of Defered Tm Assets for Urcalized hsses* (ffictin
'anan 1,2017)

PAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments to PAS 16: Bearer Plans**

Amendments to PAS 16: Clari6cation of Acceptzble Methods of Depreciation md
Amortization**

PAS 17 [emes

PAS 18 Ievenue

PAS 19
'Revised)

imployee Benefits

\mendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans - Employee Contributiom

PAS 20 Accomting for Government Grmts md Discloswe of Govemment Assistmce

rAs 2t
Ihe Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Amendments: Net Investment io a Foreign Operation

rAs 23

Revised)
Bomwing Costs

PAS24
(Revised)

Related Party Disclosues



:HILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

1AS 26 6sg6uoting md Reporting by Retiment Benefit Plms

pAs 27

(Revised)

iepmte Finmcial Statemetrts

Amendmens to PAS 27: Investment Eltities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Sepmte Fimncial Statmmts

PAS 28
(Revised)

lnvestmef,ts in Associates md Joint Ventues

{mendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of .Assets betweetr u Iovestor md its
\ssociate orJoint Venrxe (cfeaiw date &fcmd ifufila!)
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities - App$ry the Comolidation Exception

PAS 29 iinancial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 32

linmdal Instrmeots: Presentation

{,mendments to PAS 32 md PAS 1: Puttable Finmcial Itrtrments md Obligations Arising
rn Liquidation

Lmendmeats to PAS 32: ClassiEcation ofRights Issues

{meodments to PAS 32: Offsettiog Fi"-cial Assets md Fimncial Liabilities

PAS 33 lmioss Per Shtre

PAS 34 .nte.i- Finmcial Reporting

PAS 36
mpaimmt of Assets

{meodoent to PAS 36: Recovenble Amomt Disdosues for Non-finmcid Asses

lAs 37 )rovisions, Contingent Liabilities md Contingent Assets

PAS 38

ntargible Assets

Amendments to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation md
Amortization

PAS 39

Finmcial Instmens: Recognition md Memmeot
Amendments to PAS 39: Tmsition md Initial Recognition of Finmcid Assets md Finmcial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39; Cch Flow Hedge Accouring of Forecmt lotragroup Trmsactions

{mendmeos to PAS 39: The FairValue Option

{mendments to PAS 39 md PFRS 4: Finmdal Guarafltee Contracts

{mendments to PAS 39 md PFRS 7: Reclassification of Fimcial Asseu

\oendments to PAS 39 md PFRS 7: Redmsification of Fi"-cid Assets - Effrctive Date md
frmsition

{mendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derimtives

\mendments to PAS 39: Efuible Hedged Itm
{mendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accomti"g

PAS 40 nvestment Ptoperty

PAS 41
Agriculture

Amerdmens to PAS 41: Bmr Plants

Philippine laterprctatiof,s - Lntefiatioaal Finaacial Repotting Intetptetations Comaittee (IFRfC)

;FRIC I Chaoges in Existing Decomissiooing Restoration and Similar Liabilities**

:FRIC 2 Membem' Shre in Cooperative Entities md Similtr Instrments

FRIC 4 Detminiag Whethet m Acargment Contaios a Ime

FRIC 5
BJghts to 1o,"*16 Sising from Decomissio.i.g. Restoration md Enviromental
Rehabilitation Fmds+*

FRIC 6
Liabiiities Arisirg from Prticiparing i, a SpeciEc Market - Wmte Electricd md Electrcnic

Equioment



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted
Not

Adopted
Not

Applicable

IFRIC 7
Applying the Restatment Apprcach mder PAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hypeinflationary
Economies

IFRIC 9

Retrsessment of Embedded Derimtives**

Amendments 16 philippine Intelpretation IFRIC 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Duivativest*

IFRIC IO Interim Financial Reporting and lmpaiment

TFRIC 12 ienice Conession Atraogments

IFRIC 13 Jutomer Ioyalty Progrmes

FRIC 14

)AS 19 - The r;mit on a De6ned Benefit Asseq Minimum Frmding Requimenb atrd their
.nteaction

\mendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 14, Prepayments of a Minim Fmding
lequirment md thdr Intemction**

IFRIC 16 Fledges of a Net Invetment ia a Foreign Operation

:FRIC 17 Disaibutions of Noo<mh Assets to Omem**

FRIC T8 frmsfm of Asses ftom Cutomm**

FR]C 19 Extinguishing Finmcial Liabilities with Equity Instrumms

FRIC 20 itripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine*+

FRIC 2I Ievies

Philippine late4tretations - Stnding late4tretations Comittee (SIC)

;IC.7 lntroduction of tle Euro

;IC-10 3ovement Assistance - No Specific Relatioo to Operatiq Aaivities

irc-13 oindy Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributiom by Veoturers

;IC-15 )pemting Icses - Incmtives

;IC-25 ncome Taxes - Changes in the Tu Status of an Entity or is Shreholden+*

;tc-27 lvaluating the Substmce of Trmactions Involviog the kgal Fom of a Icme

sIC-29 ieryice Concession Arangements: Disdosues

sIc-3t Revenue - Barter Trmsactions Inyolvitrg Advertisirg Serices*+

src-32 lntangible Asses - Web Site Costs

* These stmdards will be effective for periods subsequent to 2016 and re not eady adopted by the Fouodation.

t* These stmdrds have been adopted in the preparation of fioancial satements but the Foudation hro no sigaificant trmsactions covered

in both yeus presmted.


